
 
 

 
 
 
 

Memorandum  
 
 
Date: September 25, 2025 
 
To: SOUTHERN NEVADA DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 

 
From: Daniel Isler, PE, REHS, Environmental Health Engineer/Supervisor DI 

Daniel Burns, PE, REHS, Environmental Health Engineer/Manager DB 
Chris Saxton, MPH-EH, REHS, Director of Environmental Health KS on behalf of 
Saxton 
Cassius Lockett, PhD, District Health Officer 

 
 
Subject:   Variance request for an existing septic system, SNHD Permit #ON0010273, located 

at 2625 Barbaradale Cir., Las Vegas, NV 89146 to allow existing trees to encroach 
on the septic system 

 
 

 I. BACKGROUND: 
 
Sean Connell, Owner (“Petitioner”), is requesting a variance to obtain approval for a Tenant 
Improvement in accordance with Section 3 of the Southern Nevada District Board of Health 
Regulations Governing Individual Sewage Disposal Systems and Liquid Waste Management (“SNHD 
ISDS Regulations”) and to allow future building permits to be issued for the property located at 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 163-11-111-004, also known as 2625 Barbaradale Cir., Las Vegas, NV 
89146 (“Subject Property”).  
 
Petitioner requests a variance from Section 3.7 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations, which states that 
a “Tenant Improvement approval request shall be denied if the existing individual sewage 
disposal system (ISDS) is in violation of any of these Regulations.” The existing septic system is 
currently in violation of Section 11.3 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations. 
 
Petitioner further requests a variance from Section 11.3 of the SNHD ISDS Regulations, which 
states that “trees shall be at least ten feet (10’) from both the septic tank and leach field.” There 
are several trees above or near the leach field. Petitioner would like to proceed with their Tenant 
Improvement approval request and allow the existing trees to remain. 
 
Petitioner states the following with regards to these requirements: 
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1. There must be circumstances or conditions which are unique to the applicant, and do not 
generally affect other persons subject to the regulation: 
 
“This request is based on a nearly forty-year old septic system that is performing as designed in at 
a private residence to allow for remolding my master bathroom. I am not adding any new fixtures 
and simply want to re-tile my tub and shower along with adding a new countertop and shower 
door. The trees in question were planted over twenty years ago and more than ten years before I 
bought the home. They are the only source of shade in large portion of my property that would be 
rendered mostly useless half the year if the trees are removed for my family and pets because of the 
excessive heat.” 
 

2. There must be circumstances or conditions which make compliance with the regulation 
unduly burdensome and cause a hardship to and abridge a substantial property right of 
the applicant, and the variance is necessary to render substantial justice to and preserve 
the property rights of the applicant. Please indicate in what manner compliance with the 
regulation would be burdensome or cause a hardship on your business or how the free 
use of your property may be affected (if economic factors are an issue, please include 
estimates regarding the costs that would be incurred by compliance): 
 
“The property is located in an area of Spring Valley not serviced by City Sewers. The nearest main 
is approximately half a mile from my property at the corner of Sahara and Rainbow. Trenching and 
installing a new sewer line is cost prohibitive. The bids attached to the prior decision for the home 
on Starlight show six years ago it was estimated between $87,000 to $98,000 to install 475 feet of 
sewer line. Given the inflation we have all experienced since the pandemic, there is no doubt that 
cost would be much higher today and likely even doubled. 
There is also the effect on my property rights. I’m being told I am not allowed to renovate my 
bathroom without relandscaping my backyard, and that new landscaping cannot include shade 
trees for an area of approximately 1700 square feet. That is a significant portion of my lot, even 
before taking into consideration the land occupied by the house, garage, driveway, and front yard. 
I bought the house because of size of the backyard which will become mostly useless when it is hot 
if the only shade is removed. The valley is being encouraged to plant more trees to provide shade, 
and I have two mature trees not causing any damage to my leach field or tank I�m being ordered 
to remove.” 
 

3. Granting the variance will not be detrimental or pose a danger to public health and safety. 
Please provide evidence that the variance request, if approved, will not adversely affect 
the safe and sanitary operation of the applicant(s) pool, spa, or food establishment: 
 
“The septic tank and leach field are on private property servicing a single family residence. The 
tank and leach field are currently performing as intended. The number of drain lines and length of 
each make it highly unlikely the trees in question will do enough damage to cause the system to fail. 
The trees have been there over twenty years and there has never been a problem with the tank. If 
the tank or leach field does fail at some point in the future, I will be the only one affected. The risk 
posed by the variance is a financial one to me and to the health or welfare of the public. 
Finally, when purchasing the home we were informed the prior owners did not know they were on 
septic and thought the pipe in the backyard was a sewer cleanout. They tried draining their pool 
and flooded the leach field.  This is secondhand and I cannot confirm it, but apparently they were 
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told they had to remove a large area of turf or fake grass because it was partially covering the leach 
field and prevented evaporation.  It is unclear if the instructions came from the SNHD or SNWA, 
but presumably it would be SNHD because it involved septic.  If that is true, SNHD should have 
noticed as far back as 2013 or 2014 these trees were present and did not raise the issue prior to me 
purchasing the home.  I would ask that any files or reports related to this home be searched to 
determine if someone from SNHD visited the home over ten years ago and did not address the trees 
at that time.” 

                                                                                                          
The Subject Property is depicted in Attachment C as Lot 4 of the recorded subdivision known as 
Hanover Estates, which was approved in 1979. Examination of the Clark County Assessor’s 
records and parcel genealogy show that the Petitioner is the sixth owner of the septic system and 
obtained the Subject Property in June 2015. An analysis of available aerial photography shows 
that the trees were planted between Spring 2004 and Fall 2004. The property has not been 
improved since the adoption of the current regulations in 2009. The existing septic system was 
approved on April 2, 1986. The existing single-family residence was constructed in 1985. 
 
An analysis of the surrounding area shows that there are 144 permitted septic systems within a 
square mile of the Subject Property. The Subject Property receives water service from Las Vegas 
Valley Water District, which receives water from the Colorado River. The nearest sewer 
connection point is approximately 840 feet from the Subject Property. 
 
  II. RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The existing trees located on and near the head of the leach field pose a risk to the septic system 
via root intrusion. Root intrusion can cause hydraulic failure, which may result in sewage backup 
into the structures being serviced by the septic system or surfacing of sewage over the leach field; 
however, the presence of trees allows for uptake of the effluent by the roots, which may improve 
treatment of the effluent.  
    
Staff are of the opinion that granting the variance would not endanger public health or safety; 
however, staff recommend DENIAL of the variance due to the Subject Property’s use of Colorado 
River Water, the location of the trees directly above and near the head of the leach field, and the 
system’s age. If the Board of Health approves the variance, staff recommend approval with the 
following conditions outlined in Section III. 
 
           III. CONDITIONS: 
 
If approved, staff recommend the following conditions: 
 

1. Petitioners and their successor(s) in interest shall abide by all local governmental 
regulations requiring connection to community sewage systems. Use of the ISDS shall be 
discontinued and the structure it serves shall be connected to any community sewage 
system constructed in the future to within four hundred (400) feet of the applicant’s 
property line when connection can be made by gravity flow and the owner(s) are notified 
and legally required to do so. 
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2. Petitioners and their successor(s) will abide by the operation and maintenance 
requirements of the most current SNHD Regulations governing individual sewage 
disposal systems. 

 
3. No additional trees are allowed within ten feet (10’) of the existing septic system. 

 
4. The variance will be in effect until the existing residential septic system is inactivated, 

removed, or if the property changes land use. Conversion of the existing septic system for 
commercial use will result in the variance becoming null and void.  

 
5. Petitioners and their successor(s) must provide a copy of the variance to potential buyers 

as part of the disclosure process per NRS 113.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachments: 

A. Variance Candidate Application 
B. Justification Letter from the Petitioner 
C. Hanover Estates Subdivision Map 
D. Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0056341) 
E. Final Inspection Report and Plot Plan for ON0010273 
F. Septic Tank Inspection by Master Jetting Sewer Specialist LLC 
G. Public Notice 
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Attachment A: Variance Candidate Application (Page 1 of 2) 
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Attachment A: Variance Candidate Application (Page 2 of 2) 
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Attachment B: Justification Letter from Petitioner (Page 1 of 2) 
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Attachment B: Justification Letter from Petitioner (Page 2 of 2) 
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Attachment C: Hanover Estates Subdivision Map 
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Attachment D: Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0056341) (Page 1 of 4) 
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Attachment D: Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0056341) (Page 2 of 4)
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Attachment D: Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0056341) (Page 3 of 4) 
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Attachment D: Tenant Improvement Review by SNHD Staff (SR0056341) (Page 4 of 4) 
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Attachment E: Final Inspection Report and Plot Plan for ON0010273 (Page 1 of 3) 
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Attachment E: Final Inspection Report and Plot Plan for ON0010273 (Page 2 of 3) 
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Attachment E: Final Inspection Report and Plot Plan for ON0010273 (Page 3 of 3) 
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Attachment F: Septic Tank Inspection by Master Jetting Sewer Specialist LLC 
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Attachment G: Public Notice 

 


